
Mission: Provide quality person-centred health care services to our community 

WRH VALUES 

We respectfully acknowledge that the Windsor Regional Hospital occupies the traditional, ancestral 

and contemporary lands of the Niswi Ishkodewan Anishinaabeg: The Three Fires Confederacy 

(Ojibwe, Odawa, and Potawatomi). We acknowledge the land and the surrounding waters for 

sustaining us and we are committed to protecting and restoring these lands and waters from 

environmental degradation. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thursday, December 9, 2021 
VIA ZOOM: 1700 hours 

Windsor, Ontario 

 (ZOOM link is included with the meeting invitation) 

TAB TIME ACTION 

1. CALL TO ORDER (Paniccia) 1700 

2. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

(Paniccia) 

1702 

3. PREVIOUS MINUTES:

November 4, 2021 (Paniccia) Tab A 1703 MOTION 

(approve) 

4. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT & CEO (Musyj)

Will be live presentation 

1705 FYI 

5. SCHULICH REPORT – (Jacobs) Tab B 1730 FYI 

6. FINANCIAL PRESENTATION – (Allen) Tab C 1735 MOTION 

(accept) 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:

Finance/Audit & Resources: November 29, 2021 &

Operating Results (Allen)

Tab D 1745 

MOTION 

(accept) 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PRINTED MATTER:

 Media Report – FYI only (Paniccia) Tab E 1750 FYI 

9. BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS OR

NOTICES OF MOTIONS (Paniccia) 1755 

10. DATE OF NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING:

Thursday, January 6, 2022 – ZOOM

1800 FYI 



11. ADJOURNMENT (Paniccia) 1802 MOTION 

REGRETS ONLY TO dawn.sutherland@wrh.on.ca, or (519) 254-5577 X52517 

HAPPY BIRTHDAY 

Mary Dawson 

Patricia France 

Jonathan Foster 

mailto:dawn.sutherland@wrh.on.ca


 

 
T

A
B

 A
 



Board of Directors – November 4, 2021 Page 1 
 

 
 

MINUTES of the BOARD OF DIRECTORS meeting held on Thursday, November 4, 2021, 17:00 hours, 

via ZOOM, live streamed on YouTube. 

 

PRESENT VIA ZOOM:  
Anthony Paniccia, Chair  

Genevieve Isshak  Dr. Laurie Freeman Dr. Wassim Saad (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Paul Lachance   Patricia France  David Musyj (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Michael Lavoie   Laura Copat  Karen Riddell (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Penny Allen   Mary Dawson  Dr. Larry Jacobs (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Ian McLeod   Cynthia Bissonnette Dr. Maher Sabalbal (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Dan Wilson  

 

STAFF VIA ZOOM: 
Executive Committee 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
The meeting was called to order at 1700 hours with Mr. Paniccia presiding as Chair and Ms. 

Sutherland recording the minutes. 

   

2. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

None declared. 

 

3. PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

The minutes of the October 7, 2021 Board meeting had been previously circulated. 

 

MOVED by Mr. P. Lachance, SECONDED by Ms. P. France and CARRIED 

THAT the minutes of the October 7, 2021 Board of Directors meeting be approved. 

 

The Chair provided information on the following fundraising campaigns: 

 Grow On Windsor, a local fundraising campaign created by the Windsor Cancer Centre 

Foundation in 2015.  The campaign takes place every November in support of cancer 

awareness, research and treatment for men living in our region.  Funds stay local and helps 

support patients within the WRCC.  You can donate directly on the website:  

https://windsorcancerfoundation.org/grow-on 

 The WRH Mega Monthly 50/50 raffle continues for the month of November.  Again, tickets 

can be purchased online. 

 

4. REPORT FROM THE PRESIDENT & CEO: 

Mr. Musyj reported. Highlights from his report are as follows: 

i) Provincial trends of COVID+ patients:  in the middle of October we had 500 cases per day.  The 

7 day average has started to increase slightly and as indicated by the Province Chief Medical 

Officer of Health, we anticipate cases will rise as we move indoors with the colder weather.  As 

cases in the community go up, trailing indicators will be hospitalizations, ICU cases and 

unfortunately deaths.    

https://windsorcancerfoundation.org/grow-on


Board of Directors – November 4, 2021 Page 2 
 

ii) As it stands right now in hospitals across the Province, 60% of COVID+ patients are unvaccinated 

or partially vaccinated.  85% of COVID+ patients in Ontario ICUs are unvaccinated or partially 

vaccinated. Mr. Musyj explained that we really need to continue to look at these numbers.  This 

means 26% of the total population is not fully vaccinated.  As vaccination rates go up the more 

these numbers will start moving.   

iii) Since June 29, 2021 WR has admitted 184 COVID-19+ patients, 73% have not been fully 

vaccinated.  Of the 184, 42 patients have been admitted to the ICU.   The trend, both provincially 

and internationally, is those not vaccinated are the ones being admitted to ICUs.   

 

Another hot topic is infection-induced versus vaccine-induced immunity and Dr. Saad provided some 

information.  People feel that if they have had COVID they have a natural immunity to the disease, 

however this is not enough to exempt them from being vaccinated.  Emerging evidence coming from 

the US and other centres continues to strengthen the recommendation from the WRO, Health Canada 

and CDC, and that is vaccination after a natural infection is required to protect yourself in the long-

term.  Dr. Saad explained that antibody levels do not give a complete picture of whether someone is 

immune or not. Also, immune responses in individuals vary from person to person.  Also studies show 

that if you have been infected and then get vaccinated you will have a more robust immune response 

than someone with just the vaccine. 

 

Ms. Riddell provided an update on the Ouellette COVID AC and the MET PUMA AC: 

 The Ouellette Assessment Centre focuses on 18 years of age and above (children are also seen 

when necessary) and is open 7 days a week from 0700-1500. Symptomatic testing only and 

by appointment. 

 Met PUMA Assessment Centre focuses on 17 years of age and under, symptomatic testing 

only by appointment.  Hours are 1200-2000 7 days a week.  As of November 2, 2021 we have 

seen over 3500 children.   

 There continues to be other community based free COVID-19 symptomatic testing in the 

community. 

 Third doses are now available to an expanded group – individuals 70 and over, health care 

workers and designated essential caregivers in congregate settings, indigenous populations 

and those who received the series of AstraZeneca or Johnson & Johnson.  These individuals 

would have had to receive their 2nd dose at least six (6) months ago. Third doses are available 

at the mass vaccination site at Devonshire mall, by appointment only and also at participating 

pharmacies, healthcare providers and pop up vaccination clinics in Windsor-Essex. We are 

encouraging people to book their third doses. Mr. Musyj advised that we do not have a date 

yet for 5 – 11 year old vaccinations.  We are waiting on Health Canada approval and following 

that a process will be provided with respect to distribution.  The 5 – 11 year olds will get 

priority just like first and second doses.  We will have a limited availability at that time and 

if you are eligible now you should book your third dose while you have the opportunity.   

 

Mr. J. Foster outlined the new partnership between the RAAMP Clinic and the Erie St. Clair Regional 

Cancer Program.  This is a cancer screening partnership for unattached patients or for those individuals 

who are having difficulty accessing screening.  Many patients missed their 2020 screenings.  Patients 

can book their own appointments through the RAAMP website or by calling the clinic.  Cervical, 

Colorectal and OBSP cancer screenings have all fallen from due to the pandemic.  This will assist 

primary care in getting caught up and doing more face to face visits.  Mr. Foster explained the 

screening pathway that includes follow up and communication to the primary care provider.  Mr. 

Musyj added that we are trying to help with early detection. 

 

 

 

 



Board of Directors – November 4, 2021 Page 3 
 

5. REPORT FROM SCHULICH: 

 Dr. Jacobs provided the following highlights: 

 The Medical School is back to full in person leaning and things are going well.  Western has 

a 99% vaccination rate on campus.  There is still some work to do to catch up in some areas 

of the curriculum that could not get done as well as they could over the last 18 months.  

Confident with some strategies that this will be completed this academic year. 

 Thank you to the hospital for finding capacity to accept increased medical learners on campus 

as some could not travel due to the pandemic.   

 

6. Financial Presentation & Treasurer’s Report – September 30, 2021 

Ms. Allen reported.   

 

Slide 2 – Financial Results – Hospital Operations 

 $2.3 million deficit for hospital operations year to date. 

 The net deficit after building amortization is $3,158,000. 

 COVID-19 unfunded expenses total $4,258,000 to date. 

 Unfunded non-ministry revenues and unearned volume funding total $6.8 million. 

 Slide 3 – Funding 

 In September we received a one-time funding letter for $709,800 for three (3) additional 

 acute med/Surg beds to be operational from October 1st to March 31st. 

 The Ministry has confirmed that Q1 incremental expenses submitted will be funded 

 and therefore $3 million of this funding has been accrued. 

 

Revenue 

 Base and one time funding is $15.6 million favourable due to amounts that have been 

 accrued for known COVID-19 reimbursements.  These include the Q1 incremental 

 expenses, temporary physician payments, vaccination and assessment centre funding 

 and nursing extern funding. 

 

Slide 4 – COVID-19 Impact on Expenses  

 4.3 million year to date in extraordinary expenses for which funding has not yet been 

 received or confirmed – these are for the Q2 incremental expenses.  

Slide 5 – Expenses 

 Salaries and Benefits combined are unfavourable $4.7 million due to additional staffing for 

 screening, the assessment and vaccination centre. 

 Additional Med Fees ($4.8 million over budget) 

 $3.8 million are physician fees related to COVID and are fully funded 

 Remaining variance in diagnostic services as the cost of earning additional 

 patient services revenues 

 Med/Surg supply deficit is $1.6 million to date due to higher than budgeted Personal 

 Protection Equipment costs (PPE – masks, gowns and gloves).  To date additional 

 PPE costs are $2.5 million. 

 Drugs are unfavourable $828,000 to date but are offset by higher favourable retail 

 pharmacy revenues. 

 Other supplies are unfavourable by $3.3 million mainly due to referred out expenses.  

 Note the surplus of $964,000 in utilities due to the continuation of the electricity  rebate that 

 we have mentioned before. 



Board of Directors – November 4, 2021 Page 4 
 

MOVED by Ms. P. Allen, SECONDED by Ms. P. France and CARRIED 

THAT the report from the November 4, 2021 Financial Presentation (as of September 30, 2021) be 

accepted. 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 

MOVED by Ms. P. Allen, SECONDED by Dr. L. Freeman and CARRIED 

THAT the report from the October 25, 2021 Finance/Audit & Resources Committee meeting be 

accepted. 

  

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PRINTED MATTER:  
a) Media Report – FYI only. 

 

9. BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS OR NOTICES OF MOTIONS: 
None 

 

10. NEW BUSINESS: 

None 

 

11. DATE OF NEXT REGULAR MEETING: 

Thursday, December 9, 2021, 1700 hrs VIA: ZOOM 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to discuss, it was 

 

 MOVED by Mr. P. Lachance by Ms. C. Bissonnette and CARRIED 

 THAT the November 4, 2021 Board of Directors meeting be adjourned at 1750 hours. 

 

 

 ___________________________  ____________________________ 

 Anthony Paniccia, Chair   Dawn Sutherland 

 Board of Directors    Recording Secretary 

/ds 



 

 
T

A
B

 B
 



 

Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry – Windsor Campus 

Dr. Murray O’Neil Medical Education Centre, Room 1100, 401 Sunset Ave., Windsor, ON, Canada N9B 3P4  

Telephone: 519-561-1411 Fax: 519-561-1413 www.uwindsor.ca/medicine 

 
 

Update to WRH Board of Directors (December 9, 2021) 

 

 Dean John Yoo, along with a contingent of senior medical school leadership visited the 
Windsor Campus on November 25 and 26. The Schulich strategic plan was shared and 
discussions were centered around Clinical Faculty entering a promotional, full time 
academic stream.  

 I would like to congratulate the medical students receiving clerkship awards: 
o Anaesthesia-  Brandon Clark 

o OB/GYN- Ilinca Georgescu  

o Surgery- Kelsey Ambrose  

o Psych- Masad Markus  

o Medicine – Justin Senecal 

o Emergency Medicine – Julia Cirone 

o Family Medicine – Dalia Kashash 

o Paediatrics - Brittney Curry  

 The Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry – Windsor Campus, in partnership with the 

University of Windsor,  Office of Research and Innovation, will soon launch its 2022 

Schulich UWindsor Opportunities for Research Excellence Program (SWORP). The aim 

of SWORP is to enrich undergraduate medical education by enabling students from the 

Schulich Windsor Campus to engage in a research project under the supervision of a 

University of Windsor Faculty Member/Research Mentor. SWORP will provide funding 

for medical students to undertake a research project in any health-related area: 

biomedical, medical, or health-related research including basic, translational, clinical, 

health services or education research. SWORP is jointly sponsored by Western 

University and the University of Windsor.  

 The Windsor Campus is pleased to announce two new positions that will continue to 

improve the student experience at the Windsor Campus 

o Medical Student Research Associate – Devinder Moudgil, PhD 

o Clinical Therapist – Laura Little, MSW RSW 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Lawrence Jacobs, MD, FRCPC, FACP 
Associate Dean, Windsor Campus 
Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry, Western University.  

 



 

 
 

T
A

B
 C

 
 

 
 

 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee

Financial Presentation (October 2021 Results)

WRH Board of Directors Meeting - December 9, 2021



Financial Results – Hospital Operations (1,000’s of dollars)
October 31, 2021

Net Surplus/(Deficit) after building amortization ($4,282)

Current Year 

Actual Budget

$ Variance

Fav/(Unfav) 

 % Variance

Fav/(Unfav)  

Revenue 357,808$             334,776$             23,032$               6.9%

Expenses

Salaries and Wages 157,092$             151,477$             (5,615)$                (3.7%)

Employee benefits 40,379                  38,509                  (1,870)                   (4.9%)

Employee ben. - future ben. costs 1,197                    1,197                    -                             0.0%

Medical staff remuneration 36,534                  31,007                  (5,527)                   (17.8%)

Medical & Surgical supplies 23,461                  21,681                  (1,780)                   (8.2%)

Drugs 42,972                  40,771                  (2,201)                   (5.4%)

Supplies & other expenses 47,912                  40,885                  (7,027)                   (17.2%)

Long term Interest 4,034                    4,034                    -                             0.0%

Equipment lease / rental 1,504                    1,366                    (138)                      (10.1%)

Equipment amortization 6,030                    6,209                    179                       2.9%

Total Expense 361,115$             337,136$             (23,979)$              (7.1%)

Surplus / (Deficit) From Hospital Operations (3,307)$                (2,360)$                (947)$                    

COVID-19 extraordinary operating expenses 

unfunded - eligible
1,935$                  1,935$                  

COVID-19 extraordinary operating expenses 

unfunded  - ineligible
1,740$                  1,740$                  

COVID-19 related unfunded non-ministry 

revenue loss included above
3,102$                  3,102$                  

YTD - Unearned Ministry volume funding 4,585$                  (4,585)$                

Surplus or (Deficit) / Revenue -0.92% -0.70% -0.22%



Financial Results
October 31, 2021

Funding

◦ Ministry has now confirmed Q1 & Q2 incremental COVID-19 expenses submitted will be 
funded

◦ $6.2 million in funding has been accrued for these expenses

◦ Hospitals have received guidance on funding for Q3 and Q4 incremental expenses

◦ Screening costs remain eligible for reimbursement

◦ Some costs such as incremental PPE will no longer be reimbursed

Year to Date Revenue
◦ Base and One-Time Funding $20.8 million favourable

◦ Mainly due to amounts accrued for known COVID-19 reimbursements

◦ Patient Services Revenue $1,767,000 favourable – relates to uninsured patient revenue from the 
Ministry and higher diagnostic revenues which are offset by higher medical staff remuneration expense



Financial Results – COVID-19 Impact
October 31, 2021

Year to Date Results include $1.7 million in 
COVID-19 extraordinary expenses which are 
ineligible for funding.  

Windsor Regional Hospital 

Funded

Unfunded 

Eligible

Unfunded 

Ineligible

Revenue

Patient Services -                      -                      2,355,976           

Recoveries -                      -                      746,079              

Total Revenue -                      -                      3,102,055           

Expense

Compensation 8,668,651           1,412,535           1,361,828           

Medical Staff Fees 4,021,279           209,876              -                      

Med. Surg. Supplies 2,696,472           1,735                  173,226              

Drugs 19,790                -                      10                       

Other supplies & expense 8,913,150           302,903              146,545              

Equipment Expenses 816,677              7,880                  58,626                

Renovations 12,974                -                      -                      

Total Expense 25,148,993         1,934,929           1,740,235           

Total Operating 25,148,993$       1,934,929$         4,842,290$         

COVID-19 Revenue Loss & Expenses Year-to-Date October 

2021



Financial Results
October 31, 2021

Year to Date Expenses
◦ $24 million year to date unfavourable variance in expenses

$29 million of the total $32 million in COVID-19 expenses are confirmed/eligible for funding

◦ Drugs $2.2 unfavourable, systemic and renal drugs are funded by Ontario Health and additional 
drug expenses in retail pharmacies are offset by recoveries

◦ Other supplies variance includes  $3,561,000 additional e-Volve HIS project costs due to

COVID-19 delays for which we have received funding confirmation

◦ Electricity rebate has been extended to October 31, 2022 at 18.9%

◦ Utilities are favourable $1,097,000 year to date



 

 
T

A
B

 D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – November 29, 2021 

 

MOTION/ACTION SHEET 
 

From The 
 

FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
General Session 

 

Monday, November 29, 2021 
 
 
THERE ARE NO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE. 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – November 29, 2021 

 
 
 

MINUTES from the meeting of the FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE (General 
Session) held on Monday, November 29, 2021 Via Zoom (following the In-Camera Session). 
 
PRESENT:        COMMUNITY MEMBERS: 
Penny Allen        Sandra Boglitch 
Dr. Laurie Freeman      Dwayne Dawson 
Paul Lachance       Trevor Chapman 
Dan Wilson        Robert Klein 
Ian McLeod        Ramona Nordemann 
 
Anthony Paniccia, Chair of the Board 
 
REGRETS: 
Dr. Maher Sabalbal 
 
STAFF: 
Mark Fathers 
Heidi Zimmer 
Kevin Marshall 
Mary Macera 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mrs. Allen called the meeting to order at 5:28 p.m. 
 
The proceedings were recorded by Mary Macera. 
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOVED by Ian McLeod, SECONDED by Dwayne Dawson that the General 
Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Agenda of Monday, November 29, 2021, 
be approved. 

 
  CARRIED. 
 
3.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
No “Conflict of Interest” was declared. 
 
4.0 PRESENTATIONS 
 
There were No Presentations. 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – November 29, 2021 

Page Two 

 
5.0 FOR APPROVAL / RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
5.1 Minutes of Previous Meeting – Monday, October 25, 2021 
 
 The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Minutes of the General Meeting of Monday, 

October 25, 2021 were previously circulated to all members. 
 

MOVED by Paul Lachance, SECONDED by Ian McLeod that the General Meeting 
Minutes from the Finance/Audit & Resources Committee of Monday, October 
25, 2021 be approved. 
 
CARRIED. 

 
6.0 FOR DISCUSSION 
 
6.1  Monthly Operating Results Report – October 31, 2021 (As Appended) 
 
  Ms. Zimmer provided the following highlights: 
 

 Operating results report for the seven months ended October 31, 2021 resulted in a 
deficit of $4,282,000 ($679,000 positive Hospital Margin). 
 

 Items to note: 
 

- Operating results include a combined $32 million in higher costs and lost revenues 
due to COVID-19.  Ministry has confirmed that the COVID-10 expenses will be 
reimbursed through criteria applied in fiscal 2020-2021 for the first two quarters of 
fiscal year 2021-2022.  The hospital has received communication regarding criteria 
for reimbursement for the last two quarters of the fiscal year. 

- WRH has received funding confirmation from the Ministry of $16.4 million for 32 
acute medical/surgical beds and 5 acute mental health beds to be operational for 
entire fiscal year. 

- Funding amounting to $709,800 has been received for an additional 3 acute 
medical/surgical beds to be in operation from October 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022. 

- COVID-19 – year-to-date results include $1.7 million in COVID-19 extraordinary 
expenses which are ineligible for funding. 

- Net revenue losses total $7.7 million. 
- Base and one-time funding - $15.6 million favourable. 
- Preferred Accommodations and Co-Payment Revenue - $1.96 unfavourable. 
- Patient services revenue - $1.76 favourable. 
- Other recoveries - $972,000 favourable. 
- Year-to-date expenses - $24 million year-to-date unfavourable variance in expenses 

of which Drugs are $2.2 million unfavourable and Other supplies with an 
unfavourable variance of $7.0 million. 

 
 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – November 29, 2021 

Page Three 

 
It is noted at the meeting that an error was found on Statement #2 – COVID-19 
extraordinary operating expenses unfunded – ineligible will be corrected from $4,842,000 
to $1,740,000. 

 
6.2  Status of 2021-22 Budget Risk Items – October 31, 2021 
 

Ms. Zimmer provided the status of budget risk items.  Highlights included: 
 

- Best case, worse case and most likely; projections are the same as in the previous 
month.  Looking at one time revenues due to COVID-19 expenses being reimbursed 
in Q1 and 2 and designated expenses only reimbursed in Q3 and 4. 

- Also, an estimate using the data that we have to date and what projections will be 
in terms of OR volumes and wait time volumes to see where our QBP and wait time 
revenues will end up. 

- Anticipated that drug expenses will trend as they are currently and offsets being 
favourable. 

- Not much change in preferred accommodation. 
- Diagnostic volumes will continue as is to address backlog. 
- Retain pharmacy revenue continue to trend favourably. 
- Medical fees funded due to COVID-19. 
- Rental of tent for screening and assessment centre, trailer for PUMA. 

 
7.0 FOR INFORMATION 
 
7.1  President’s Report – November 2021 
 

Committee members are welcome to access the link provided on the meeting agenda to 
listen to Mr. Musyj’s monthly report. 

 
8.0 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee will meet on Monday, December 20, 2021 at 5:00 
p.m. Via Zoom. 
 
9.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mrs. Allen indicated that there was no further business. 
 

MOVED by Paul Lachance, SECONDED by Ian McLeod that the General Meeting 
from the Finance/Audit & Resources Committee of Monday, November 29, 
2021, be adjourned at 5:46 p.m. 
 
CARRIED. 

 
 
 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – November 29, 2021 

Page Four 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________             __________________________________ 
Mrs. Penny Allen, Chair & Treasurer      Mary Macera 
FinAudit&Resources_Minutes        Recorder 
20211129 
 





























 

 
 

 
 

 
T

A
B

 E
 

 
 



 

 

Media Report to the Board of Directors  

NOVEMBER 2021 

 
 

Museum of Windsor creates local COVID-19 archive ahead of reopening 
CTV Windsor, Oct. 29, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/museum-windsor-creates-local-covid-19-archive-ahead-of-
reopening-1.5645874 
 
Guest column: The COVID-19 vaccine is safe and here is why 
Windsor Star, Oct. 30, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/guest-column-the-covid-19-vaccine-is-safe-and-here-
is-why 
 
WECHU officials encouraged by COVID-19 trends 
AM800, Oct. 29, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-officials-encouraged-by-covid-19-trends-
1.16379550 
 
COVID-19 has been deadlier in Windsor-Essex than most parts of Ontario. Here's why 
CBC Windsor, Oct. 29, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid19-deaths-windsor-essex-1.6228190 
 
Two largest school boards release staff, trustee vaccination rates 
Windsor Star, Oct. 30, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/two-largest-school-boards-release-staff-trustee-
vaccination-rates 
 
Windsor Cancer Centre Foundation launches annual Grow On campaign 
AM800, Oct. 30, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-cancer-centre-foundation-launches-annual-
grow-on-campaign-1.16383773 
 
Windsor's top doc 'reluctant' on mass COVID-19 testing as province looks to provide kits to 
schools 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 1, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov1-1.6232561 
 
 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/museum-windsor-creates-local-covid-19-archive-ahead-of-reopening-1.5645874
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/museum-windsor-creates-local-covid-19-archive-ahead-of-reopening-1.5645874
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/guest-column-the-covid-19-vaccine-is-safe-and-here-is-why
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/guest-column-the-covid-19-vaccine-is-safe-and-here-is-why
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-officials-encouraged-by-covid-19-trends-1.16379550
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-officials-encouraged-by-covid-19-trends-1.16379550
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid19-deaths-windsor-essex-1.6228190
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/two-largest-school-boards-release-staff-trustee-vaccination-rates
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/two-largest-school-boards-release-staff-trustee-vaccination-rates
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-cancer-centre-foundation-launches-annual-grow-on-campaign-1.16383773
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-cancer-centre-foundation-launches-annual-grow-on-campaign-1.16383773
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov1-1.6232561


Health unit will watch impact of border reopening on COVID-19 cases closely 
Blackburn News, Nov. 1, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/01/health-unit-will-watch-
impact-border-reopening-covid-19-cases-closely/ 
 
45 staff impacted following mandatory vaccine deadline at Sarnia, Chatham-Kent hospitals 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 1, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-bluewater-chatham-kent-health-alliance-
1.6232918 
 
98% of CKHA staff comply with vaccine policy; 26 terminated 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 1, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/98-per-cent-of-chatham-kent-health-alliance-staff-comply-with-
vaccine-policy-26-terminated-1.5647173 
 
More COVID-19 cases listed at area public schools 
AM800, Nov. 1, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/more-covid-19-cases-listed-at-area-public-schools-
1.16398769 
 
President and CEO of HDGH to retire 
AM800, Nov. 1, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/president-and-ceo-of-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-
to-retire-1.16398364 
 
HDGH CEO retires; replacement announced 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 1, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-ceo-retires-replacement-announced-
1.5647092 
 
HDGH announces new CEO as Kaffer announces retirement 
Blackburn News, Nov. 1, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/01/hdgh-announces-new-ceo-
kaffer-announces-retirement/ 
 
HDGH CEO Kaffer to retire; Marra poised to take over 
Windsor Star, Nov. 1, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hotel-dieu-grace-ceo-kaffer-to-retire-marra-poised-
to-take-over 
 
Windsor-Essex sees lowest daily increase in COVID-19 cases since early August 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 2, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov2-1.6233878 
 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/01/health-unit-will-watch-impact-border-reopening-covid-19-cases-closely/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/01/health-unit-will-watch-impact-border-reopening-covid-19-cases-closely/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-bluewater-chatham-kent-health-alliance-1.6232918
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-bluewater-chatham-kent-health-alliance-1.6232918
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/98-per-cent-of-chatham-kent-health-alliance-staff-comply-with-vaccine-policy-26-terminated-1.5647173
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/98-per-cent-of-chatham-kent-health-alliance-staff-comply-with-vaccine-policy-26-terminated-1.5647173
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/more-covid-19-cases-listed-at-area-public-schools-1.16398769
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/more-covid-19-cases-listed-at-area-public-schools-1.16398769
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/president-and-ceo-of-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-to-retire-1.16398364
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/president-and-ceo-of-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-to-retire-1.16398364
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-ceo-retires-replacement-announced-1.5647092
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-ceo-retires-replacement-announced-1.5647092
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/01/hdgh-announces-new-ceo-kaffer-announces-retirement/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/01/hdgh-announces-new-ceo-kaffer-announces-retirement/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hotel-dieu-grace-ceo-kaffer-to-retire-marra-poised-to-take-over
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hotel-dieu-grace-ceo-kaffer-to-retire-marra-poised-to-take-over
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov2-1.6233878


WRH recognized by Trillium Gift of Life Network for organ donation efforts 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 2, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-recognized-by-trillium-gift-of-life-
network-for-organ-donation-efforts-1.5648801 
 
Ontario not mandating COVID-19 vaccines for hospital workers, no change to Windsor 
Regional Hospital policy 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/ontario-not-mandating-covid-19-vaccines-for-hospital-workers-no-
change-to-windsor-regional-hospital-policy-1.5651128 
 
Ford says no to mandatory vaccination policy for hospital workers 
AM800, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/ford-says-no-to-mandatory-vaccination-policy-for-
hospital-workers-1.16410769 
  
New partnership aims to reduce cervical cancer screening backlog  
Windsor Star, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cervical-cancer-screening 
  

WECHU ready to ramp up administering COVID-19 booster shots  
CTV Windsor, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-ready-to-ramp-up-administering-covid-19-booster-shots-
1.5650500 
 
New appointments for COVID-19 booster shots available in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/appointments-for-covid-19-booster-shots-available-
in-windsor-essex-1.16411340 
 
Health Unit prepared to roll out COVID booster shots to newly eligible groups 
Windsor Star, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-prepared-to-roll-out-covid-booster-
shots-to-newly-eligible-groups 
 
WRH’s PUMA clinic has served over 3,500 patients in two months 
AM800, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-s-puma-clinic-has-served-over-3-500-patients-
in-two-months-1.16409227 
  
Jarvis-What will they say unvaccinated doctors who lost hospital privileges request hearing 
Windsor Star-Nov 3, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-what-will-they-say-unvaccinated-doctors-
who-lost-hospital-privileges-request-hearing 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-recognized-by-trillium-gift-of-life-network-for-organ-donation-efforts-1.5648801
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-recognized-by-trillium-gift-of-life-network-for-organ-donation-efforts-1.5648801
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/ontario-not-mandating-covid-19-vaccines-for-hospital-workers-no-change-to-windsor-regional-hospital-policy-1.5651128
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/ontario-not-mandating-covid-19-vaccines-for-hospital-workers-no-change-to-windsor-regional-hospital-policy-1.5651128
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/ford-says-no-to-mandatory-vaccination-policy-for-hospital-workers-1.16410769
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/ford-says-no-to-mandatory-vaccination-policy-for-hospital-workers-1.16410769
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cervical-cancer-screening
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-ready-to-ramp-up-administering-covid-19-booster-shots-1.5650500
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-ready-to-ramp-up-administering-covid-19-booster-shots-1.5650500
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/appointments-for-covid-19-booster-shots-available-in-windsor-essex-1.16411340
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/appointments-for-covid-19-booster-shots-available-in-windsor-essex-1.16411340
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-prepared-to-roll-out-covid-booster-shots-to-newly-eligible-groups
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-prepared-to-roll-out-covid-booster-shots-to-newly-eligible-groups
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-s-puma-clinic-has-served-over-3-500-patients-in-two-months-1.16409227
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-s-puma-clinic-has-served-over-3-500-patients-in-two-months-1.16409227
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-what-will-they-say-unvaccinated-doctors-who-lost-hospital-privileges-request-hearing
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-what-will-they-say-unvaccinated-doctors-who-lost-hospital-privileges-request-hearing


55,000 eligible Windsor-Essex residents still unvaccinated against COVID-19 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov3-1.6235301 
 
Nearly 55,000 people in Windsor-Essex yet to receive COVID-19 vaccine 
AM800, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/nearly-55-000-people-in-windsor-essex-yet-to-
receive-covid-19-vaccine-1.16410143 
 
I’m still shocked that I’m here: Windsor Paralympian back at home five weeks after being on 
life support  
CTV Windsor, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/i-m-still-shocked-that-i-m-here-windsor-paralympian-back-at-
home-five-weeks-after-being-on-life-support-1.5650584 
 
Vaccine clinics for Leamington residents 
Blackburn News, Nov. 3, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/04/vaccine-clinics-leamington-
residents/ 
 
Get vaccine even if you’ve had COVID-19, WRH warns 
Windsor Star, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/get-vaccine-even-if-youve-had-covid-19-windsor-
regional-hospital-warns 
 
Infection immunity not as effective as vaccine immunity: WRH Chief of Staff 
AM800, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/infection-immunity-not-as-effective-as-vaccine-
immunity-wrh-chief-of-staff-1.16420506 
 
Morning Drive – Not Mandating COVID-19 vaccines for hospital workers 
AM800, Nov. 4, 2021 
Morning Drive - Not Mandating COVID-19 Vaccines for Hospital Workers (iheartradio.ca) 
 
Significant demand for COVID-19 booster shot appointments 
AM800, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/significant-demand-for-covid-19-booster-shot-
appointments-1.16415839 
 
Windsor public health sees quick uptake for 3rd dose COVID-19 vaccine bookings 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov4-1.6236861 
 
 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov3-1.6235301
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/nearly-55-000-people-in-windsor-essex-yet-to-receive-covid-19-vaccine-1.16410143
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/nearly-55-000-people-in-windsor-essex-yet-to-receive-covid-19-vaccine-1.16410143
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/i-m-still-shocked-that-i-m-here-windsor-paralympian-back-at-home-five-weeks-after-being-on-life-support-1.5650584
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/i-m-still-shocked-that-i-m-here-windsor-paralympian-back-at-home-five-weeks-after-being-on-life-support-1.5650584
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/04/vaccine-clinics-leamington-residents/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/04/vaccine-clinics-leamington-residents/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/get-vaccine-even-if-youve-had-covid-19-windsor-regional-hospital-warns
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/get-vaccine-even-if-youve-had-covid-19-windsor-regional-hospital-warns
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/infection-immunity-not-as-effective-as-vaccine-immunity-wrh-chief-of-staff-1.16420506
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/infection-immunity-not-as-effective-as-vaccine-immunity-wrh-chief-of-staff-1.16420506
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/morning-drive-not-mandating-covid-19-vaccines-for-hospital-workers-1.16414908?mode=Article
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/significant-demand-for-covid-19-booster-shot-appointments-1.16415839
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/significant-demand-for-covid-19-booster-shot-appointments-1.16415839
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov4-1.6236861


‘Pretty significant response’ – WECHU says COVID-19 booster appointments filling up 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/pretty-significant-response-wechu-says-covid-19-booster-
appointments-filling-up-1.5652316 
 
COVID-19 patients at WRH still not vaccinated 
Blackburn News, Nov. 5, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/05/covid-19-patients-wrh-still-
not-vaccinated/ 
 
Burden of COVID-19 remains; residents flood website for booster shots 
Blackburn News, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/04/burden-covid-19-remains-
residents-flood-website-booster-shots/ 
 
Burden of COVID-19 holding steady in Windsor-Essex 
Windsor Star, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/burden-of-covid-19-holding-steady-in-windsor-essex 
 
Less expensive COVID-19 PCR tests being offered for cross-border travellers 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/less-expensive-covid-19-pcr-tests-being-offered-for-cross-border-
travellers-1.5652065 
 
WRH’s president still receiving threats 
AM800, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-s-president-still-receiving-
threats-1.16415788 
 
Windsor-Essex women encouraged to get screened for cervical cancer 
AM800, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-women-encouraged-to-get-screened-
for-cervical-cancer-1.16415633 
 
Gretzky calling the provincial fall economic statement incredibly disappointing (references 
new hospital project late in story) 
AM800, Nov. 4, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/gretzky-calling-the-provincial-fall-economic-
statement-incredibly-disappointing-1.16420487 
 
WRH Chief of Staff recommends COVID-19 vaccine regardless of natural immunity 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 5, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-chief-of-staff-recommends-covid-19-vaccine-regardless-of-
natural-immunity-1.5653629 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/pretty-significant-response-wechu-says-covid-19-booster-appointments-filling-up-1.5652316
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/pretty-significant-response-wechu-says-covid-19-booster-appointments-filling-up-1.5652316
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/05/covid-19-patients-wrh-still-not-vaccinated/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/05/covid-19-patients-wrh-still-not-vaccinated/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/04/burden-covid-19-remains-residents-flood-website-booster-shots/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/04/burden-covid-19-remains-residents-flood-website-booster-shots/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/burden-of-covid-19-holding-steady-in-windsor-essex
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/less-expensive-covid-19-pcr-tests-being-offered-for-cross-border-travellers-1.5652065
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/less-expensive-covid-19-pcr-tests-being-offered-for-cross-border-travellers-1.5652065
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-s-president-still-receiving-threats-1.16415788
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-s-president-still-receiving-threats-1.16415788
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-women-encouraged-to-get-screened-for-cervical-cancer-1.16415633
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-women-encouraged-to-get-screened-for-cervical-cancer-1.16415633
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/gretzky-calling-the-provincial-fall-economic-statement-incredibly-disappointing-1.16420487
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/gretzky-calling-the-provincial-fall-economic-statement-incredibly-disappointing-1.16420487
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-chief-of-staff-recommends-covid-19-vaccine-regardless-of-natural-immunity-1.5653629
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-chief-of-staff-recommends-covid-19-vaccine-regardless-of-natural-immunity-1.5653629


 
Newly formed group in Windsor-Essex to fight COVID-19 vaccine mandates 
AM800, Nov. 5, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/newly-formed-group-in-windsor-essex-to-fight-
covid-19-vaccine-mandates-1.16424024 
 
Windsor hospital CEO firm on vaccine mandate despite province not following suit 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 5, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-regional-hospital-vaccines-1.6238166 
 
Planning on travelling to the US soon? Where to get COVID-19 tests in Windsor 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 7, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/planning-on-travelling-to-the-u-s-soon-where-to-get-covid-19-test-
in-windsor-1.5655767 
 
Guest column: COVID-19 needs to be declared airborne in Windsor-Essex 
Windsor Star, Nov. 6, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/guest-column-covid-19-needs-to-be-declared-
airborne-in-windsor-essex 
 
Border City Mayors urge Ottawa to drop PCR test to cross the border 
AM800, Nov. 8, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/border-city-mayors-urge-ottawa-to-drop-pcr-test-to-
cross-the-border-1.16444604 
 
Cheaper option: travellers and organizations find solutions for pricey PCR test 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 9, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/cheaper-option-travellers-and-organizations-find-solutions-for-
pricey-pcr-test-1.5658927 
 
COVID-19 outbreak declared at WRH’s Ouellette campus 
AM800, Nov. 10, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-wrh-s-ouellette-
campus-1.16457866 
 
COVID-19 outbreak at Windsor Regional Hospital's Ouellette campus 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 10, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-outbreak-at-windsor-regional-hospital-
ouellette-campus-1.6244497 
 
COVID-19 outbreak declared at WRH’s Ouellette campus 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 10, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-windsor-regional-hospital-s-
ouellette-campus-1.5660484 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/newly-formed-group-in-windsor-essex-to-fight-covid-19-vaccine-mandates-1.16424024
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/newly-formed-group-in-windsor-essex-to-fight-covid-19-vaccine-mandates-1.16424024
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-regional-hospital-vaccines-1.6238166
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/planning-on-travelling-to-the-u-s-soon-where-to-get-covid-19-test-in-windsor-1.5655767
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/planning-on-travelling-to-the-u-s-soon-where-to-get-covid-19-test-in-windsor-1.5655767
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/guest-column-covid-19-needs-to-be-declared-airborne-in-windsor-essex
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/guest-column-covid-19-needs-to-be-declared-airborne-in-windsor-essex
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/border-city-mayors-urge-ottawa-to-drop-pcr-test-to-cross-the-border-1.16444604
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/border-city-mayors-urge-ottawa-to-drop-pcr-test-to-cross-the-border-1.16444604
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/cheaper-option-travellers-and-organizations-find-solutions-for-pricey-pcr-test-1.5658927
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/cheaper-option-travellers-and-organizations-find-solutions-for-pricey-pcr-test-1.5658927
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-wrh-s-ouellette-campus-1.16457866
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-wrh-s-ouellette-campus-1.16457866
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-outbreak-at-windsor-regional-hospital-ouellette-campus-1.6244497
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-outbreak-at-windsor-regional-hospital-ouellette-campus-1.6244497
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-windsor-regional-hospital-s-ouellette-campus-1.5660484
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-windsor-regional-hospital-s-ouellette-campus-1.5660484


 
COVID-19 outbreak declared at Ouellette campus 
Blackburn News, Nov. 10, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/10/covid-19-outbreak-declared-
ouellette-campus/ 
 
HDGH eliminating RN jobs 
Windsor Star, Nov. 11, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-eliminating-rn-jobs 
 
City preparing for decreased staff levels as vaccination deadline approaches 
Blackburn News, Nov. 10, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/10/city-preparing-decreased-
staff-levels-vaccination-deadline-approaches/ 
 
Potentially hundreds of unvaccinated city workers facing unpaid suspension 
Windsor Star, Nov. 10, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/potentially-hundreds-of-unvaccinated-city-workers-
facing-unpaid-suspension 
 
City of Windsor waiting on vaccination confirmation from 22 per cent of staff 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 10, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-of-windsor-waiting-on-vaccination-confirmation-from-22-per-
cent-of-staff-1.5660167 
 
City’s vaccination deadline called a difficult situation by CUPE local 543 president 
AM800, Nov. 11, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-s-vaccination-deadline-called-a-difficult-
situation-by-cupe-local-543-president-1.16461237 
 
Vaccination deadline approaching for City of Windsor employees 
AM800, Nov. 10, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/vaccination-deadline-approaching-for-city-of-
windsor-employees-1.16458761 
 
Windsor-Essex 12-year-olds to get 'grace period' in rec centre vaccination policy 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 10, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov10-1.6243815 
 
Changes to WRH’s visitor policy 
Blackburn News, Nov. 14, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/14/changes-windsor-regional-
hospitals-visitor-policy/ 
 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/10/covid-19-outbreak-declared-ouellette-campus/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/10/covid-19-outbreak-declared-ouellette-campus/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-eliminating-rn-jobs
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/10/city-preparing-decreased-staff-levels-vaccination-deadline-approaches/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/10/city-preparing-decreased-staff-levels-vaccination-deadline-approaches/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/potentially-hundreds-of-unvaccinated-city-workers-facing-unpaid-suspension
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/potentially-hundreds-of-unvaccinated-city-workers-facing-unpaid-suspension
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-of-windsor-waiting-on-vaccination-confirmation-from-22-per-cent-of-staff-1.5660167
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-of-windsor-waiting-on-vaccination-confirmation-from-22-per-cent-of-staff-1.5660167
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-s-vaccination-deadline-called-a-difficult-situation-by-cupe-local-543-president-1.16461237
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-s-vaccination-deadline-called-a-difficult-situation-by-cupe-local-543-president-1.16461237
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/vaccination-deadline-approaching-for-city-of-windsor-employees-1.16458761
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/vaccination-deadline-approaching-for-city-of-windsor-employees-1.16458761
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov10-1.6243815
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/14/changes-windsor-regional-hospitals-visitor-policy/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/14/changes-windsor-regional-hospitals-visitor-policy/


WRH adjusting visitor policy 
AM800, Nov. 12, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-adjusting-visitor-policy-
1.16469284 
 
WRH adjusts visitor restrictions 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 12, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-adjusts-visitor-restrictions-1.5663983 
 
No intention to eliminate or phase out RN role at HDGH 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 12, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/no-intention-to-eliminate-or-phase-out-rn-role-hdgh-1.5663611 
 
HDGH disputes claim RN jobs will be cut at the hospital 
AM800, Nov. 12, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-disputes-claim-rn-jobs-will-be-cut-at-the-
hospital-1.16469023 
 
HDGH denies eliminating RN positions 
Blackburn News, Nov. 12, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/12/hdgh-denies-eliminating-rn-
positions/ 
 
COVID-19 induced surgery times tackled by new cross-border business 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 14, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-induced-surgery-times-tackled-by-new-cross-border-
business-1.5665463 
 
Big jump in COVID-19 cases in Windsor-Essex 
Blackburn News, Nov. 12, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/12/big-jump-covid-19-cases-
windsor-essex/ 
 
Active COVID-19 cases in Windsor-Essex return to 200-plus 
Windsor Star, Nov. 12, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/active-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-return-to-
200-plus 
 
Windsor police union fighting COVID-19 vaccine mandate 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 12, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-police-union-vaccines-1.6246651 
 
 
 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-adjusting-visitor-policy-1.16469284
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-adjusting-visitor-policy-1.16469284
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-adjusts-visitor-restrictions-1.5663983
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/no-intention-to-eliminate-or-phase-out-rn-role-hdgh-1.5663611
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-disputes-claim-rn-jobs-will-be-cut-at-the-hospital-1.16469023
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-disputes-claim-rn-jobs-will-be-cut-at-the-hospital-1.16469023
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/12/hdgh-denies-eliminating-rn-positions/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/12/hdgh-denies-eliminating-rn-positions/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-induced-surgery-times-tackled-by-new-cross-border-business-1.5665463
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-induced-surgery-times-tackled-by-new-cross-border-business-1.5665463
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/12/big-jump-covid-19-cases-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/12/big-jump-covid-19-cases-windsor-essex/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/active-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-return-to-200-plus
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/active-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-return-to-200-plus
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-police-union-vaccines-1.6246651


Multiple classes and bus cohorts dismissed from Windsor-Essex Catholic District School Board 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 15, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/multiple-classes-and-bus-cohorts-dismissed-from-windsor-essex-
catholic-district-school-board-1.5665497 
 
Feedback wanted for design of new mega hospital 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 15, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/feedback-wanted-for-design-of-new-mega-hospital-1.5666919 
 
Public input requested for design of mega hospital 
Blackburn News, Nov. 16, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/16/public-input-requested-
design-mega-hospital/ 
 
Student led event to address COVID-19 vaccine hesitancy 
Blackburn News, Nov. 16, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/16/student-led-event-address-
covid-19-vaccine-hesitancy/ 
 
Student led online event to address vaccine hesitancy among Windsor-Essex young people 
Windsor Star, Nov. 15, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/student-led-online-event-to-address-vaccine-
hesitancy-among-windsor-essex-young-people 
 
Upcoming event focused on addressing vaccine hesitancy among youth 
AM800, Nov. 15, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/upcoming-event-focused-on-addressing-vaccine-
hesitancy-among-youth-1.16495913 
 
Windsor forms COVID-19 recovery task force as city emerges from pandemic 
AM800, Nov. 16, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-forms-covid-19-recovery-task-force-as-city-
emerges-from-pandemic-1.16495864 
 
Over 91% of City of Windsor staff disclose vaccination status 
AM800, Nov. 15, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/over-91-per-cent-of-city-of-windsor-staff-disclose-
vaccination-status-1.16490567 
 
Transit Windsor services disrupted over staffing challenges following vaccine mandate 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 15, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/transit-windsor-services-disrupted-over-staffing-challenges-
following-vaccine-mandate-1.5666977 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/multiple-classes-and-bus-cohorts-dismissed-from-windsor-essex-catholic-district-school-board-1.5665497
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/multiple-classes-and-bus-cohorts-dismissed-from-windsor-essex-catholic-district-school-board-1.5665497
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/feedback-wanted-for-design-of-new-mega-hospital-1.5666919
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/16/public-input-requested-design-mega-hospital/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/16/public-input-requested-design-mega-hospital/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/16/student-led-event-address-covid-19-vaccine-hesitancy/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/16/student-led-event-address-covid-19-vaccine-hesitancy/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/student-led-online-event-to-address-vaccine-hesitancy-among-windsor-essex-young-people
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/student-led-online-event-to-address-vaccine-hesitancy-among-windsor-essex-young-people
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/upcoming-event-focused-on-addressing-vaccine-hesitancy-among-youth-1.16495913
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/upcoming-event-focused-on-addressing-vaccine-hesitancy-among-youth-1.16495913
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-forms-covid-19-recovery-task-force-as-city-emerges-from-pandemic-1.16495864
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-forms-covid-19-recovery-task-force-as-city-emerges-from-pandemic-1.16495864
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/over-91-per-cent-of-city-of-windsor-staff-disclose-vaccination-status-1.16490567
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/over-91-per-cent-of-city-of-windsor-staff-disclose-vaccination-status-1.16490567
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/transit-windsor-services-disrupted-over-staffing-challenges-following-vaccine-mandate-1.5666977
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/transit-windsor-services-disrupted-over-staffing-challenges-following-vaccine-mandate-1.5666977


Burden of COVID-19 in Windsor-Essex is increasing, top doc says 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 15, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov15-1.6249138 
 
Health unit reports rising COVID burden in Windsor-Essex 
Windsor Star, Nov. 15, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-rising-covid-burden-in-windsor-
essex 
 
Burden of COVID-19 locally increasing as recent case counts tick up 
AM800, Nov. 15, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/burden-of-covid-19-locally-increasing-as-recent-case-
counts-tick-up-1.16489178 
 
Public asked for input on design of new regional hospital 
AM800, Nov. 16, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-asked-for-input-on-design-of-new-regional-
hospital-1.16491439 
 
City marching toward a vaccinate-or-terminate situation says mayor 
AM800, Nov. 16, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-marching-toward-a-vaccinate-or-terminate-
situation-says-mayor-1.16497515 
 
ESHC forming palliative care partnership 
Blackburn News, Nov. 17, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/17/eshc-forming-palliative-care-
partnership/ 
 
ESHC and palliative care physicians form partnership for end-of-life care 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 16, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/eshc-and-palliative-care-physicians-form-partnership-for-end-of-
life-care-1.5668489 
 
Public school board educators now permitted to wear respirators 
AM800, Nov. 17, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-school-board-educators-now-permitted-to-
wear-respirators-1.16501258 
 
Everything that we do is a risk – health unit warns of increase in COVID clusters 
Windsor Star, Nov. 17, 2021  
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/everything-that-we-do-is-a-risk-health-unit-warns-
of-increase-in-covid-clusters 
 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov15-1.6249138
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-rising-covid-burden-in-windsor-essex
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-rising-covid-burden-in-windsor-essex
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/burden-of-covid-19-locally-increasing-as-recent-case-counts-tick-up-1.16489178
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/burden-of-covid-19-locally-increasing-as-recent-case-counts-tick-up-1.16489178
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-asked-for-input-on-design-of-new-regional-hospital-1.16491439
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-asked-for-input-on-design-of-new-regional-hospital-1.16491439
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-marching-toward-a-vaccinate-or-terminate-situation-says-mayor-1.16497515
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-marching-toward-a-vaccinate-or-terminate-situation-says-mayor-1.16497515
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/17/eshc-forming-palliative-care-partnership/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/17/eshc-forming-palliative-care-partnership/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/eshc-and-palliative-care-physicians-form-partnership-for-end-of-life-care-1.5668489
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/eshc-and-palliative-care-physicians-form-partnership-for-end-of-life-care-1.5668489
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-school-board-educators-now-permitted-to-wear-respirators-1.16501258
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/public-school-board-educators-now-permitted-to-wear-respirators-1.16501258
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/everything-that-we-do-is-a-risk-health-unit-warns-of-increase-in-covid-clusters
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/everything-that-we-do-is-a-risk-health-unit-warns-of-increase-in-covid-clusters


Windsor-Essex eager for lifting of PCR test rule for short term cross border travel 
Windsor Star, Nov. 17, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-eager-for-lifting-of-pcr-test-rule-for-
short-term-cross-border-travel 
 
Windsorites react to potential removal of PCR test requirement for short trips to the U.S. 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 17, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-border-pcr-tests-1.6253061 
 
Health unit urging public to stay diligent over the holidays 
AM800, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-urging-public-to-stay-diligent-over-the-
holidays-1.16508819 
 
Holiday party planners urged to take precautions to protect guests 
Blackburn News, Nov. 17, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/17/holiday-party-planners-urged-
take-precautions-protect-guests/ 
 
Local COVID-19 cases among vaccinated and unvaccinated individuals on the rise 
AM800, Nov. 17, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-covid-19-cases-among-vaccinated-and-
unvaccinated-individuals-on-the-rise-1.16504046 
 
Windsor Early Years Centre hosts second COVID-19 vaccine clinic 
Blackburn News, Nov. 17, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/17/windsor-early-years-centre-
host-second-covid-19-vaccine-clinic/ 
 
Majority of recent COVID ICU patients unvaccinated 
Windsor Star, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/majority-of-recent-covid-icu-patients-unvaccinated 
 
Number of COVID-19 outbreaks remain high in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/number-of-covid-19-outbreaks-remain-high-in-
windsor-essex-1.16510663 
 
COVID-19 case rates, per cent positivity and hospitalizations increase: WECHU 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-case-rates-per-cent-positivity-and-hospitalizations-
increase-wechu-1.5671922 
 
 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-eager-for-lifting-of-pcr-test-rule-for-short-term-cross-border-travel
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-eager-for-lifting-of-pcr-test-rule-for-short-term-cross-border-travel
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-border-pcr-tests-1.6253061
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-urging-public-to-stay-diligent-over-the-holidays-1.16508819
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-urging-public-to-stay-diligent-over-the-holidays-1.16508819
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/17/holiday-party-planners-urged-take-precautions-protect-guests/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/17/holiday-party-planners-urged-take-precautions-protect-guests/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-covid-19-cases-among-vaccinated-and-unvaccinated-individuals-on-the-rise-1.16504046
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-covid-19-cases-among-vaccinated-and-unvaccinated-individuals-on-the-rise-1.16504046
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/17/windsor-early-years-centre-host-second-covid-19-vaccine-clinic/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/17/windsor-early-years-centre-host-second-covid-19-vaccine-clinic/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/majority-of-recent-covid-icu-patients-unvaccinated
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/number-of-covid-19-outbreaks-remain-high-in-windsor-essex-1.16510663
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/number-of-covid-19-outbreaks-remain-high-in-windsor-essex-1.16510663
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-case-rates-per-cent-positivity-and-hospitalizations-increase-wechu-1.5671922
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-case-rates-per-cent-positivity-and-hospitalizations-increase-wechu-1.5671922


Medical Officer of Health explains unvaccinated creating greater burden for COVID-19 
Blackburn News, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/18/moh-explains-unvaccinated-
creating-greater-burden-covid-19/ 
 
Health unit confirms youngest fatality yet in pandemic 
Blackburn News, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/18/health-unit-confirms-
youngest-fatality-yet-pandemic/ 
 
WECHU asks province to make COVID vaccines compulsory for students 
Windsor Star, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-county-health-unit-asks-province-to-
make-covid-vaccines-compulsory-for-students 
 
City moves to terminate unvaccinated staff 
Windsor Star, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/city-moves-to-terminate-unvaccinated-staff 
 
Around 200 City of Windsor staff face termination following vaccine mandate 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/around-200-city-of-windsor-staff-face-termination-following-
vaccine-mandate-1.5672032 
 
City set termination deadline for unvaccinated staff 
AM800, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-sets-termination-deadline-for-unvaccinated-
staff-1.16511977 
 
Unvaccinated city staff will be replaced next year 
Blackburn News, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/18/unvaccinated-city-staff-will-
replaced-new-year/ 
 
Vaccinations for Windsor Public Library employees hits 100 per cent 
AM800, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/vaccinations-for-windsor-public-library-employees-
hits-100-per-cent-1.16510893 
 
Outbreak raises concerns over COVID-19 at Windsor-Essex elementary schools 
Windsor Star, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/outbreak-raises-concerns-over-covid-19-at-windsor-
essex-elementary-schools 
 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/18/moh-explains-unvaccinated-creating-greater-burden-covid-19/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/18/moh-explains-unvaccinated-creating-greater-burden-covid-19/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/18/health-unit-confirms-youngest-fatality-yet-pandemic/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/18/health-unit-confirms-youngest-fatality-yet-pandemic/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-county-health-unit-asks-province-to-make-covid-vaccines-compulsory-for-students
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-county-health-unit-asks-province-to-make-covid-vaccines-compulsory-for-students
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/city-moves-to-terminate-unvaccinated-staff
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/around-200-city-of-windsor-staff-face-termination-following-vaccine-mandate-1.5672032
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/around-200-city-of-windsor-staff-face-termination-following-vaccine-mandate-1.5672032
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-sets-termination-deadline-for-unvaccinated-staff-1.16511977
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-sets-termination-deadline-for-unvaccinated-staff-1.16511977
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/18/unvaccinated-city-staff-will-replaced-new-year/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/18/unvaccinated-city-staff-will-replaced-new-year/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/vaccinations-for-windsor-public-library-employees-hits-100-per-cent-1.16510893
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/vaccinations-for-windsor-public-library-employees-hits-100-per-cent-1.16510893
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/outbreak-raises-concerns-over-covid-19-at-windsor-essex-elementary-schools
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/outbreak-raises-concerns-over-covid-19-at-windsor-essex-elementary-schools


14 opioid related overdoses in Windsor-Essex prompts alert 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 18, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/14-opioid-related-overdoses-in-windsor-essex-prompts-alert-
1.5672263 
 
WECHU ramping up plans for COVID-19 vaccine distribution for children aged five to 11 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 19, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-ramping-up-plans-for-covid-19-vaccine-distribution-for-
children-aged-five-to-11-1.5673245 
 
Health unit expects to have sufficient vaccine supply for children 
Windsor Star, Nov. 20, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-expects-to-have-sufficient-vaccine-
supply-for-children 
 
Parents react to vaccine approval 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 19, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2326742 
 
COVID-19 outbreak declared at east Windsor long-term care home 
AM800, Nov. 19, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-east-windsor-long-
term-care-home-1.16516552 
 
'Feels like we're getting back to normal,' says Windsor resident on removing PCR test for 
short border trips 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 19, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/border-crossing-no-covid-test-canadians-1.6255677 
 
ESHC enhancing end of life care 
AM800, Nov. 21, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/erie-shores-healthcare-enhancing-end-of-life-care-
1.16534384 
 
Vaccine rollout for kids to begin Thursday in Windsor-Essex 
Windsor Star, Nov. 22, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/vaccine-rollout-for-kids-to-begin-thursday-in-
windsor-essex 
 
Local health unit ready to roll out vaccines for kids beginning Thursday 
AM800, Nov. 22, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-ready-to-roll-out-vaccines-for-kids-
beginning-thursday-1.16540996 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/14-opioid-related-overdoses-in-windsor-essex-prompts-alert-1.5672263
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/14-opioid-related-overdoses-in-windsor-essex-prompts-alert-1.5672263
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-ramping-up-plans-for-covid-19-vaccine-distribution-for-children-aged-five-to-11-1.5673245
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-ramping-up-plans-for-covid-19-vaccine-distribution-for-children-aged-five-to-11-1.5673245
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-expects-to-have-sufficient-vaccine-supply-for-children
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-expects-to-have-sufficient-vaccine-supply-for-children
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2326742
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-east-windsor-long-term-care-home-1.16516552
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-east-windsor-long-term-care-home-1.16516552
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/border-crossing-no-covid-test-canadians-1.6255677
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/erie-shores-healthcare-enhancing-end-of-life-care-1.16534384
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/erie-shores-healthcare-enhancing-end-of-life-care-1.16534384
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/vaccine-rollout-for-kids-to-begin-thursday-in-windsor-essex
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/vaccine-rollout-for-kids-to-begin-thursday-in-windsor-essex
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-ready-to-roll-out-vaccines-for-kids-beginning-thursday-1.16540996
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-ready-to-roll-out-vaccines-for-kids-beginning-thursday-1.16540996


COVID-19 vaccine bookings for those 5-11 open in Windsor-Essex 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 22, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov22-1.6257936 
 
Parents can book vaccination appointment for young children now 
Blackburn News, Nov. 22, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/22/parents-can-book-
vaccination-appointment-young-children-now/ 
 
What Windsor-Essex parents need to know about booking COVID-19 vaccines for younger 
kids 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 22, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/what-windsor-essex-parents-need-to-know-about-booking-covid-
19-vaccines-for-younger-kids-1.5676018 
 
Local PPC candidate urges people to clog booking system so kids can’t get COVID-19 jab 
Windsor Star, Nov. 23, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/local-ppc-candidate-urges-people-to-clog-booking-
system-so-kids-cant-get-covid-19-jab 
 
‘Reprehensible and repugnant’ – leaders react to protests planned at Windsor, ON 
vaccination centres as youth become eligible 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 23, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/reprehensible-and-repugnant-leaders-react-to-protests-planned-
at-windsor-ont-vaccination-centres-as-youth-become-eligible-1.5678241 
 
'Vile': Officials call out anti-vax actions in Windsor, Ont. meant to keep kids from the shot 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 23, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-anti-vaccination-protests-police-
1.6259907 
 
Police to monitor planned protests outside COVID-19 vaccination sites 
AM800, Nov. 23, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/police-to-monitor-planned-protests-outside-covid-
19-vaccination-sites-1.16549512 
 
Protest planned kids get first shot 
Blackburn News, Nov. 23, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/23/protest-planned-kids-get-first-
shot/ 
 
Anti-vaxxers hand out flyers outside local schools 
Windsor Star, Nov. 23, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/anti-vaxxers-hand-out-flyers-outside-local-schools 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov22-1.6257936
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/22/parents-can-book-vaccination-appointment-young-children-now/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/22/parents-can-book-vaccination-appointment-young-children-now/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/what-windsor-essex-parents-need-to-know-about-booking-covid-19-vaccines-for-younger-kids-1.5676018
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/what-windsor-essex-parents-need-to-know-about-booking-covid-19-vaccines-for-younger-kids-1.5676018
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/local-ppc-candidate-urges-people-to-clog-booking-system-so-kids-cant-get-covid-19-jab
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/local-ppc-candidate-urges-people-to-clog-booking-system-so-kids-cant-get-covid-19-jab
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/reprehensible-and-repugnant-leaders-react-to-protests-planned-at-windsor-ont-vaccination-centres-as-youth-become-eligible-1.5678241
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/reprehensible-and-repugnant-leaders-react-to-protests-planned-at-windsor-ont-vaccination-centres-as-youth-become-eligible-1.5678241
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-anti-vaccination-protests-police-1.6259907
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-anti-vaccination-protests-police-1.6259907
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/police-to-monitor-planned-protests-outside-covid-19-vaccination-sites-1.16549512
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/police-to-monitor-planned-protests-outside-covid-19-vaccination-sites-1.16549512
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/23/protest-planned-kids-get-first-shot/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/23/protest-planned-kids-get-first-shot/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/anti-vaxxers-hand-out-flyers-outside-local-schools


 
Bubble zones backed after anti-vax flyers handed out near Windsor, ON school 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 23, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/bubble-zones-backed-after-anti-vax-flyers-handed-out-near-
windsor-ont-school-1.5678395 
 
COVID-19 claims 469th victim in Windsor-Essex 
Blackburn News, Nov. 23, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/23/covid-19-claims-469th-victim-
windsor-essex/ 
 
Reader letter: hospital location is right choice 
Windsor Star, Nov. 23, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-hospital-location-is-right-choice 
 
Musyj says fake bookings of vaccine system cross a line 
AM800, Nov. 24, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/musyj-says-fake-bookings-of-vaccine-system-cross-a-
line-1.16555977 
 
Top doctor denounces anti-vax protests outside clinics, schools 
Windsor Star, Nov. 24, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/top-doctor-denounces-anti-vax-protests-outside-
clinics-schools 
 
Local health unit concerned about reports of anti-vaxxer protests 
AM800, Nov. 24, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-concerned-about-reports-of-anti-
vaxxer-protests-1.16561190 
 
‘We’re very caring’: Organizer of vaccine information rally in Windsor vowing to be respectful  
CTV Windsor, Nov. 24, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/we-re-very-caring-organizer-of-vaccine-information-rally-in-
windsor-vowing-to-be-respectful-1.5680048 
 
Health Unit reassures parents online booking system is safe 
Blackburn News, Nov. 24, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/24/health-unit-reassures-
parents-online-booking-system-safe/ 
  
Classes sent home from two more Windsor-Essex schools 
Blackburn News, Nov. 24, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/25/classes-sent-home-two-
windsor-essex-schools/ 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/bubble-zones-backed-after-anti-vax-flyers-handed-out-near-windsor-ont-school-1.5678395
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/bubble-zones-backed-after-anti-vax-flyers-handed-out-near-windsor-ont-school-1.5678395
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/23/covid-19-claims-469th-victim-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/23/covid-19-claims-469th-victim-windsor-essex/
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-hospital-location-is-right-choice
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/musyj-says-fake-bookings-of-vaccine-system-cross-a-line-1.16555977
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/musyj-says-fake-bookings-of-vaccine-system-cross-a-line-1.16555977
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/top-doctor-denounces-anti-vax-protests-outside-clinics-schools
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/top-doctor-denounces-anti-vax-protests-outside-clinics-schools
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-concerned-about-reports-of-anti-vaxxer-protests-1.16561190
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-concerned-about-reports-of-anti-vaxxer-protests-1.16561190
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/we-re-very-caring-organizer-of-vaccine-information-rally-in-windsor-vowing-to-be-respectful-1.5680048
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/we-re-very-caring-organizer-of-vaccine-information-rally-in-windsor-vowing-to-be-respectful-1.5680048
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/24/health-unit-reassures-parents-online-booking-system-safe/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/24/health-unit-reassures-parents-online-booking-system-safe/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/25/classes-sent-home-two-windsor-essex-schools/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/25/classes-sent-home-two-windsor-essex-schools/


Reader Letter: RNs definitely improve quality of care at Hotel-Dieu Grace 
Windsor Star, Nov. 24, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-rns-definitely-improve-quality-of-care-
at-hotel-dieu-grace 
 
Vaccines for kids roll out in Chatham-Kent this weekend 
AM800, Nov. 24, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/vaccines-for-kids-roll-out-in-chatham-kent-this-
weekend-1.16557377 
  
COVID-19 vaccination deadline extended at Windsor Assembly Plant 
AM800, Nov. 24, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-vaccination-deadline-extended-at-windsor-
assembly-plant-1.16562781 
 
Families, kids delights as 1st COVID-19 vaccines for young kids administered in Windsor-Essex 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 25, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-windsor-children-covid-vaccines-1.6262369 
 
Vaccination of Windsor-Essex kids now underway 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 25, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/vaccination-of-windsor-essex-kids-now-underway-1.5681905 
 
Younger kids get their first COVID-19 shots at Windsor-Essex vaccination clinic 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 25, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/younger-kids-get-their-first-covid-19-shots-at-windsor-essex-
vaccination-clinic-1.5681440 
  
COVID-19 indicators worsen in Windsor-Essex: WECHU 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 25, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-indicators-worsen-in-windsor-essex-wechu-1.5681252 
 
New report shows fully vaccinated people far less likely to end up in the ICU 
AM800, Nov. 25, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/new-report-shows-fully-vaccinated-people-far-less-
likely-to-end-up-in-the-icu-1.16570185 
 
COVID-19 claims third life in three days 
Blackburn News, Nov. 25, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/25/covid-19-claims-third-life-
three-days/ 
 
 
 

https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-rns-definitely-improve-quality-of-care-at-hotel-dieu-grace
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-rns-definitely-improve-quality-of-care-at-hotel-dieu-grace
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/vaccines-for-kids-roll-out-in-chatham-kent-this-weekend-1.16557377
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/vaccines-for-kids-roll-out-in-chatham-kent-this-weekend-1.16557377
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-vaccination-deadline-extended-at-windsor-assembly-plant-1.16562781
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-vaccination-deadline-extended-at-windsor-assembly-plant-1.16562781
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-windsor-children-covid-vaccines-1.6262369
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/vaccination-of-windsor-essex-kids-now-underway-1.5681905
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/younger-kids-get-their-first-covid-19-shots-at-windsor-essex-vaccination-clinic-1.5681440
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/younger-kids-get-their-first-covid-19-shots-at-windsor-essex-vaccination-clinic-1.5681440
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-indicators-worsen-in-windsor-essex-wechu-1.5681252
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/new-report-shows-fully-vaccinated-people-far-less-likely-to-end-up-in-the-icu-1.16570185
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/new-report-shows-fully-vaccinated-people-far-less-likely-to-end-up-in-the-icu-1.16570185
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/25/covid-19-claims-third-life-three-days/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/25/covid-19-claims-third-life-three-days/


Deadline extended for Windsor Assembly Plant workers to get vaccinated 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 25, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/deadline-extended-for-windsor-assembly-plant-workers-to-get-
vaccinated-1.5681121 
 
Vaccine hotline harassment 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 26, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2331333 
 
Robocalls about quarantining 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 26, 2021 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2331337 
 
COVID-19 cases continue to pile up at local schools 
AM800, Nov. 26, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-cases-continue-to-pile-up-at-local-schools-
1.16575333 
 
Nearly 2% of Windsor police unvaccinated, won't be allowed to enter workplace 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 27, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-police-vaccine-mandate-1.6264619 
 
Windsor police staff 98% vaccinated 
Blackburn News, Nov. 27, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/27/windsor-police-staff-98-per-
cent-vaccinated/ 
 
New bill would criminalize threats made toward health care workers 
AM800, Nov. 29, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/new-bill-could-criminalize-threats-made-toward-
health-care-workers-1.16596830 
 
WECHU concerned about the new COVID-19 omicron variant 
AM800, Nov. 30, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-concerned-about-the-new-covid-19-omicron-
variant-1.16596784 
 
Health unit encouraged with youth vaccine rollout 
AM800, Nov. 29, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-encouraged-with-youth-vaccine-rollout-
1.16592042 
 
 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/deadline-extended-for-windsor-assembly-plant-workers-to-get-vaccinated-1.5681121
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/deadline-extended-for-windsor-assembly-plant-workers-to-get-vaccinated-1.5681121
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2331333
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2331337
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-cases-continue-to-pile-up-at-local-schools-1.16575333
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-cases-continue-to-pile-up-at-local-schools-1.16575333
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-police-vaccine-mandate-1.6264619
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/27/windsor-police-staff-98-per-cent-vaccinated/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/27/windsor-police-staff-98-per-cent-vaccinated/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/new-bill-could-criminalize-threats-made-toward-health-care-workers-1.16596830
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/new-bill-could-criminalize-threats-made-toward-health-care-workers-1.16596830
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-concerned-about-the-new-covid-19-omicron-variant-1.16596784
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-concerned-about-the-new-covid-19-omicron-variant-1.16596784
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-encouraged-with-youth-vaccine-rollout-1.16592042
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-encouraged-with-youth-vaccine-rollout-1.16592042


Nearly 10 per cent of newly eligible kids given COVID jab in four days 
Windsor Star, Nov. 29, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/nearly-10-per-cent-of-newly-eligible-kids-given-
covid-jab-in-four-days 
 
Additional classes sent home from Windsor area Catholic schools 
Blackburn News, Nov. 30, 2021 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/30/additional-classes-sent-home-
windsor-area-english-catholic-schools/ 
 
Jarvis: Omicron shows just how perilous and precarious our situation is 
Windsor Star, Nov. 30, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-omicron-shows-just-how-perilous-and-
precarious-our-situation-is 
 
COVID-19 outbreak no longer in place at WRH’s Ouellette campus 
AM800, Nov. 30, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-no-longer-in-place-at-windsor-
regional-hospital-s-ouellette-campus-1.16598283 
 
COVID-19 outbreak still in place at two local long-term care homes 
AM800, Nov. 30, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-still-in-place-at-two-local-long-
term-care-homes-1.16598248 
 
Windsor’s mayor continues to ask the community to get vaccinated against COVID-19 
AM800, Nov. 30, 2021 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-s-mayor-continues-to-ask-the-community-
to-get-vaccinated-against-covid-19-1.16597931 
 
Windsor mayor glad for first day of PCR test requirement being lifted at border 
Windsor Star, Nov. 30, 2021 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-mayor-glad-for-first-day-of-pcr-test-
requirement-being-lifted-at-border 
 
Schools reacting quickly to COVID-19 cases but community needs to do its part, says board 
rep 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 30, 2021 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-english-school-boards-covid-1.6267680 
 
 

  

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/nearly-10-per-cent-of-newly-eligible-kids-given-covid-jab-in-four-days
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/nearly-10-per-cent-of-newly-eligible-kids-given-covid-jab-in-four-days
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/30/additional-classes-sent-home-windsor-area-english-catholic-schools/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2021/11/30/additional-classes-sent-home-windsor-area-english-catholic-schools/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-omicron-shows-just-how-perilous-and-precarious-our-situation-is
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-omicron-shows-just-how-perilous-and-precarious-our-situation-is
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-no-longer-in-place-at-windsor-regional-hospital-s-ouellette-campus-1.16598283
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-no-longer-in-place-at-windsor-regional-hospital-s-ouellette-campus-1.16598283
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-still-in-place-at-two-local-long-term-care-homes-1.16598248
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-still-in-place-at-two-local-long-term-care-homes-1.16598248
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-s-mayor-continues-to-ask-the-community-to-get-vaccinated-against-covid-19-1.16597931
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-s-mayor-continues-to-ask-the-community-to-get-vaccinated-against-covid-19-1.16597931
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-mayor-glad-for-first-day-of-pcr-test-requirement-being-lifted-at-border
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-mayor-glad-for-first-day-of-pcr-test-requirement-being-lifted-at-border
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-english-school-boards-covid-1.6267680


Web and Social Media Analytics - November 2021  

MyWRH:   

Users: 4,140 users this month, +140 

Average view time: 4 m 06 s  

 

How do people access the site?  

Desktop: 77.2%  

Mobile: 17% 

Tablet: 5.8% 

 

Most Viewed pages:  

1. Home Page – 19,773 views 
2. Career Opportunities –8,874 views 
3. Current Postings –8,855 views 
4. Employee Corner – 4,739 views 
5. Marketplace -3,487 
6. Departments and Services – 3,341 
7. News and Announcements – 2,901 
8. Physician On Call Schedule – 2,526 
9. WRH application form – 1,991 
 

WEB:  

Users: 59,569 users this month,  -11 %  

New Users: 70.7% 

Average view time: 1 m 47s 

  

Top Languages other than English:  

1 ) Chinese (zh.cn) – 167 users or  .28% of all users 

2) French  -  118, .2 % of all users 

  

 

How do people access the site?  

Mobile: 59.1%  

Desktop: 37.8% 

Tablet:  3.2% 

 

Top pages:  

1. Home Page – 28,840 views, 
2. COVID Assessment Centre –16,696 views 
3. Emergency Wait times –14,100 views 
4. coronavirus - 8,884 

http://zh.cn/


5. Puma – 3,841 
6. Careers –3,515 views 
7. Contact Us – 3,325 
8. Vaccination Centres – 3,319 views 
9. COVID Visitation –2, 277 views 

 

YOUTUBE:  

Views: 54,899 views (+48,000 more than average)  

Watch Time: 671 hours (above average)  

Subscribers: 682, +10 

 

Top videos internal: 

1. Guidelines for basic adult neurological observation - 495 
2. Demonstrating compassion - 343 
3. WRH COVID Self Test – 146 
4. Gary McNamara Zero Harm – 128  

Top videos external:  

1. Come Home to Windsor – HR Promotion – 50,533 
2. NICU Halloween Babies - 900 
3. Using quick Dams to prevent flooding at WRH – 278 
4. President and CEO Report–170  
5. Design Process for new hospital - 98 

FACEBOOK: 10,153  followers +49             

72,842 monthly reach, +52% 

36,608 people “engaged” on our site - commented or liked our posts this month, +62% 

17,685 videos viewed, +47% 

  

Top Posts:  

 
1. VIDEO: NICU Halloween– 9,700  people reached, 1,100 reactions, 5,300 Video views 
2. Get screened for cervical cancer (RAAMP Partnership)–  9,323 people reached, 325 reactions        
3. MRT Week –9,125 people reached, 683 reactions 
4. Superheros ready to vaccinate children 5-11 – 8,821 people reached, 535 reactions 
5. Trillium Gift of Life Award – 7,969 people reached, 563 reactions 

INSTAGRAM – Followers: 3,692, +79 

Reach: 10,099, 17.1% 

Engagement – 912, +16% 

 

Top Posts:  



1. Canadian ICU week - 2,082 reached, 199 liked 
2. Respiratory Therapy Week - 1,875 reached, 239 liked 
3. SuperHeros ready to vaccinate children 5 – 11 - 1,813 reached, 197 liked 
4. Dr. Velehorschi wins Jane Chamberland Award - 1,811 reached, 105 liked 
5. VIDEO: NICU Halloween babies - 1,714 liked, 518 viewed  

TWITTER:  

 

Followers: 5,047, +44 this month 

Impressions: 161,0000, +146% 

Tweets: 40, +25% 

 

Trending topics:                                                                                                 

1. WRH CO2 detector – 89,499 impressions, 1,273 engagements 
2. Superheros waiting to vaccinate children 5-11 – 16,102 impressions, 465 engagements 
3. David Musyj Stagement re: provincial vaccination mandate – 6,258 impressions, 161 

engagements 
4. COVID vaccination schedule for 3rd shot – 6,143 impressions, 695 engagements 
5. Vaccine available for children on Nov. 25 – 4,985 impressions, 235 engagements 

 


	211209 Open Agenda
	Tab Template A
	11042021 Open Board minutes
	Tab Template B
	Schulich Report
	Tab Template C
	Financial Presentation - October 2021 Results (for December 9 2021 Board Meeting)
	Tab Template D
	FAR Operating Results
	Tab Template E
	Media Report to the Board of Directors Nov 2021



